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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2012
Or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 000-21088

VICAL INCORPORATED

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 93-0948554

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization)

10390 Pacific Center Couri
San Diego, California 92121

(Address of principal executive offices (Zip code)

(858) 646-1100

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

(Former name, former address and former fiscal yearif changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti® or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was requodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastigs. YesX No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldisnitted electronically and posted on its corpokieb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted auntsto Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405) dutimg preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was requiresbitumit and post such files). YeXI No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large accelerated filel] Accelerated filer[xI Non-accelerated fileE] Smaller reporting compani

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgje Act). Yes[O No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of etiiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date.

Total shares of common stock outstanding at Agrjl2012: 85,922,276
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VICAL INCORPORATED
BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except par value data)

(Unaudited)
December 31
March 31,
2012 2011

ASSETS
Current assett

Cash and cash equivale $ 70,47: $ 38,69¢

Marketable securities, availa-for-sale 20,781 8,73:

Restricted cas 2,99¢ 2,99¢

Receivables and other ass 13,54: 3,13(
Total current asse 107,80: 53,551
Long-term investment 2,12¢ 5,92¢
Property and equipment, r 5,96¢ 6,22¢
Intangible assets, n 2,84¢ 2,871
Other asset 191 191
Total asset $ 118,93 $ 68,77
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 7,26¢ $ 6,362

Deferred revenu — 99
Total current liabilities 7,26¢ 6,461
Long-term liabilities:

Deferred ren 1,892 1,964
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 5,000 shares

authorized, none issued and outstan( — —

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 160,000 shares Azl

85,894 and 71,913 shares issued and outstandMgrah 31,

2012 and December 31, 2011, respecti 85¢ 71¢

Additional paic-in capital 433,52¢ 384,08

Accumulated defici (324,79, (325,039)

Accumulated other comprehensive inca 18€ 58(
Total stockholdel equity 109,77¢ 60,34¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 118,93 $ 68,77!

See accompanying notes to unaudited financialrattes
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Revenues
Contract and grant reven
License and royalty reveni
Total revenue
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Manufacturing and productic
General and administrati\
Total operating expens:
Loss from operation
Other income (expense
Investment and other income, 1
Net income (loss

Basic net income (loss) per shi
Diluted net income (loss) per sh

VICAL INCORPORATED
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands, except per share data)
(Unaudited)

Weighted average shares used in computing basiocm@ne (loss) per sha
Weighted average shares used in computing dilut¢thnome (loss) per sha

Comprehensive los

See accompanying notes to unaudited financialretatés
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Three Months Ended

March 31,

2012 2011
$ 1,221 $ 53C
10,23¢ 11¢
11,46( 64¢
6,42¢ 4,29(
2,472 2,74¢
2,70C 2,32¢
11,60( 9,36¢
(140) (8,717)
384 23
$ 244  $(8,69)
$ 0.0C $ (0.12)
$ 0.0C $ (0.12)
84,51¢ 71,89:
86,12/ 71,89
$ (150  $(8,736
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VICAL INCORPORATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mehcused in operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic
Write-off of abandoned paten
Gain on sale of property and equipm
Compensation expense related to stock options wadda
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Receivables and other ass
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Deferred revenu
Deferred ren
Net cash used in operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from the sale of marketable secul
Maturities of marketable securiti
Purchases of marketable securi
Purchases of property and equipm
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipr
Patent expenditure
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Payment of withholding taxes for net settlementestricted stock unit
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

See accompanying notes to unaudited financialretatés
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Three Months Ended

March 31,
2012 2011
$ 244 $(8,69)
498 57¢
20 —
(6) —
92C 79¢
(10,417 (437)
88¢ (99¢€)
(99) 7€
(57 (35
(8,00¢) (8,709)
3,75( —
5,261 4,767
(17,659 (16,779
(135) (79)
6 J—
(97) (102)
(8,879 (12,186
48,77( 1
(10€) (64)
48,66 (63)
31,77¢  (20,95%)
38,69¢ 47,32(
$70,47¢ $ 26,36
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VICAL INCORPORATED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012
(Unaudited)

1. GENERAL

Vical Incorporated, or the Company, a Delaware amfion, was incorporated in April 1987 and hasades substantially all of its
resources since that time to its research and dewednt programs. The Company researches and devgilggharmaceutical products basec
its patented DNA delivery technologies for the gnetion and treatment of serious or life-threaterisgases.

All of the Company’s potential products are in @ash and development phases. No revenues havegpaerated from the sale of any
such products, nor are any such revenues expemted feast the next several years. The Compamseavenue from research and
development agreements with pharmaceutical colitbms and grant and contract arrangements withrgowent entities. Most of the
Company’s product candidates will require significadditional research and development effortduding extensive preclinical and clinical
testing. All product candidates that advance toicdil testing will require regulatory approval prio commercial use, and will require
significant costs for commercialization. There t@mno assurance that the Company’s research aetbgewvent efforts, or those of its
collaborators, will be successful. The Company eigpt continue to incur substantial losses andyeoerate positive cash flows from
operations for at least the next several yearsadéorance can be given that the Company can gerseffficient product revenue to become
profitable or generate positive cash flows fromragiens.

The unaudited financial statements at March 3122atd for the three months ended March 31, 20812841, have been prepared in
accordance with the rules and regulations of trmiées and Exchange Commission, or SEC, and agttounting principles generally
accepted in the United States applicable to inténancial statements. These unaudited financaéstents have been prepared on the same
basis as the audited financial statements anddedhll adjustments, consisting of only normal reagraccruals, which in the opinion of
management are necessary to present fairly the @aytgofinancial position as of the interim date aesults of operations for the interim
periods presented. Interim results are not nedgsgaticative of results for a full year or futuperiods. The preparation of financial statem:
requires management to make estimates and assasihiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstialements and the reported amounts of revenuksxgenses during the reporting period. Ac
results could differ materially from those estinzat€hese unaudited financial statements shoul@d in conjunction with the Company’s
audited financial statements for the year endeceBéer 31, 2011, included in its Annual Report omi@0-K filed with the SEC.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash andyHighld securities with original maturities at thate of acquisition of ninety days or
less. Investments with an original maturity of mtran ninety days are considered marketable sexsugihd have been classified by
management as available-for-sale. These investraeatsassified as current assets, even thougétalted maturity date may be one year or
more beyond the current balance sheet date. Suebtments are carried at fair value, with unredligains and losses included as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity. Realized gaimd lasses from the sale of available-for-sale sgearor the amounts reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income, if anydatermined on a specific identification basis.

Restricted Cas

The Company is required to maintain a letter oflitreecuring an amount equal to twelve months efdixrrent monthly installment of
base rent for the term of its primary facilitiease, which ends in August 2017. Under certain pistances the Company may be able to
eliminate the need for the letter of credit. Advdrch 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, restricasti of $3.0 million was pledged as
collateral for this letter of credit.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue is recognized when the four basic critdri@venue recognition are met: (1) persuasiveengd of an arrangement exists;
(2) delivery has occurred or services renderedih@)ee is fixed or determinable; and (4) collbiity is reasonably assured. Certain of the
Company’s revenue is generated through manufagt@ontracts and stand-alone license agreements.
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The Company has entered into multiple-element gearents. In order to account for the multiple-elehz@rangements, the Company
identifies the deliverables included within the@gmnent and evaluates which deliverables represpatate units of accounting. Analyzing the
arrangement to identify deliverables requires the of judgment, and each deliverable may be agatiin to deliver services, a right or
license to use an asset, or another performanggatibh.

Multiple-element arrangements prior to January 1, 2011

Prior to adopting the revised multiple element guice on January 1, 2011, the Company analyzediitiple element arrangements to
determine whether the identified deliverables cdaddaccounted for individually as separate unitaogunting. The delivered item(s) were
considered a separate unit of accounting if atheffollowing criteria were met: (1) the deliveriggin(s) has value to the customer on a
standalone basis; (2) there is objective and rgliabidence of the fair value of the undelivereari{s); and (3) if the arrangement includes a
general right of return relative to the delivertsim, delivery or performance of the undelivereditg) is considered probable and substantially
in the Company’s control. If these criteria were met, the deliverable was combined with othendglbles in the arrangement and accounted
for as a combined unit of accounting.

Multiple-element arrangements after January 1, 2011

Effective January 1, 2011, the Company followspghavisions of ASU No. 2009-13 for all multiple elent agreements, including
contract manufacturing, contract services and §eeagreements. Under the revised guidance, theedsdi item(s) has value to the customer on
a standalone basis and, if the arrangement incladeseral right of return relative to the delivkeitem, delivery or performance of the
undelivered item(s) is considered probable andtankally in the Company’s control.

A delivered item is considered a separate unicobanting when the delivered item has value tqtmner on a standalone basis based
on the consideration of the relevant facts anduanstances for each arrangement. Factors considetieid determination include the research
capabilities of the partner and the availabilityegearch expertise in this field in the generalkmiplace. Arrangement consideration is
allocated at the inception of the agreement taelftified units of accounting based on their iigkatelling price. The relative selling price for
each deliverable is determined using vendor smecijective evidence, or VSOE, of selling pricetard-party evidence of selling price if
VSOE does not exist. If neither VSOE nor third-gatidence of selling price exists, the Companysutsebest estimate of the selling price for
the deliverable. The amount of allocable arrangemensideration is limited to amounts that aredixe determinable. The consideration
received is allocated among the separate unitsaafumting, and the applicable revenue recognitider@ are applied to each of the separate
units. Changes in the allocation of the sales fr&teveen delivered and undelivered elements caadmpvenue recognition but do not change
the total revenue recognized under any agreenfdatts and circumstances dictate that the licéasestandalone value from the undelivered
items, which generally include research and deveto services and the manufacture of drug prodtidjcense is identified as a separate
unit of accounting and the amounts allocated tditdemse are recognized upon the delivery of tbense, assuming the other revenue
recognition criteria have been met. However, iféh@unts allocated to the license through theivelaelling price allocation exceed the
upfront license fee, the amount recognized upord#tigery of the license is limited to the upfrdee received. If facts and circumstances
dictate that the license does not have standalalue vthe transaction price, including any upfia@ense fee payments received, are allocated
to the identified separate units of accounting mmbgnized as those items are delivered.

The terms of the Company’s partnership agreementdde for milestone payments upon achievemenedfin regulatory and
commercial events. Effective January 1, 2011, tbem@any adopted on a prospective basis the Mileditethod of accounting under ASU
2010-17. Under the Milestone Method, the Companpgeizes consideration that is contingent uporatttéevement of a milestone in its
entirety as revenue in the period in which the stdae is achieved only if the milestone is subgtarnn its entirety. A milestone is considered
substantive when it meets all of the following #hiiteria: 1) The consideration is commensurata either the entity’s performance to
achieve the milestone or the enhancement of theevai the delivered item(s) as a result of a speoiftcome resulting from the entity’s
performance to achieve the milestone, 2) The cenaithn relates solely to past performance, anth&)consideration is reasonable relative to
all of the deliverables and payment terms withim dinrangement. A milestone is defined as an evthtat can only be achieved based in wl
or in part on either the entity’s performance ottlo& occurrence of a specific outcome resultingnftbe entity’s performance, (ii) for which
there is substantive uncertainty at the date ttengement is entered into that the event will beeaed and (iii) that would result in additional
payments being due to the Company.
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Contract Services, Grant and Royalty Revenue

The Company recognizes revenues from contractcEradnd federal government research grants durengeriod in which the related
expenditures are incurred and related paymenthéme services are received or collection is reasigrassured. Royalties to be received basec
on sales of licensed products by the Company’sipestincorporating the Company’s licensed technoblyg recognized when received.

Net Income (Loss) Per She

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share bas bomputed using the weighted-average numbéranés of common stock
outstanding during the period. The weighted averageber of shares used to compute diluted net iegoen share also includes any assumed
exercise of stock options under the treasury stoethod, and the assumed issuance of common stalek testricted stock units, or RSUs.
Common stock equivalents totaling 1.6 million slsaier the three months ended March 31, 2012 wetaded in the calculation of diluted net
income per share. Common stock equivalents tot&8lidgnillion shares for the three months ended K&, 2011, were excluded from the
calculation of diluted net income per share becafiskeir antidilutive effect.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsréoor FASB, issued authoritative guidance regardomprehensive income. This
newly issued accounting standard allows an ertityalve the option to present the components ahoeme and comprehensive income in
either one or two consecutive financial stateméerte. guidance eliminates the current option to repiher comprehensive income and its
components in the statement of changes in stocktsldquity. While the new guidance changes theatation of comprehensive income,
there are no changes to the components that asgnieed in net income or other comprehensive inconter current accounting guidance.
The guidance was effective for fiscal years andrint periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Cbmpany adopted these provisions ¢
January 1, 2012. The adoption did not have a natempact on the Company'’s financial position aulés of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidareggarding common fair value measurements andadisct requirements in
U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ameinational Financial Reporting Standards. Thiglpéssued accounting standard clari
the application of certain existing fair value me&asnent guidance and expands the disclosuresiforaflae measurements that are estimated
using significant unobservable inputs. This guidawas effective on a prospective basis for annuligterim reporting periods beginning on
or after December 15, 2011. The Company adoptextthmvisions as of January 1, 2012. The adopimbnat have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position or results of operatio

2. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Total stock-based compensation expense was altbtatesearch and development, manufacturing amdugtion and general and
administrative expense as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2012 2011
Research and developmt $ 287 $ 25¢
Manufacturing and productic 49 31
General and administrati\ 584 50¢
Total stocl-based compensation expe! $ 92C $ 79¢

During the three months ended March 31, 2012 aidd 2he Company granted stock-based awards witabdstimated value of $3.6
million and $2.9 million, respectively. At March 32012, total unrecognized estimated compensakparee related to unvested stock-based
awards granted prior to that date was $5.1 millwinich is expected to be recognized over a weightetage period of 1.7 years. Stock-based
awards granted during the three months ended MafrcR012 and 2011, were equal to 1.9% and 3.1%eotisely, of outstanding shares of
common stock at the end of the applicable period.
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3. COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Comprehensive loss consists of net income (los$)cartain changes in equity that are excluded fnetrincome (loss). For the three
months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, comprehelusigavas $0.2 million and $8.7 million, respedive

4. OTHER BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consistad @llowing (in thousands):

March 31, December 31
2012 2011
Clinical trial accruals $ 1,624 $ 1,681
Employee compensatic 2,18¢ 3,65:
Accounts payabl 2,76¢ 351
Other accrued liabilitie 68E 677
Total accounts payable and accrued expe $ 7,26¢ $ 6,362
5. SHORT-TERM MARKETABLE SECURITIES
The following is a summary of short-term marketatdeurities classified as available-for-sale (omuands):
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Market
March 31, 2012 Cost Gain Loss Value
U.S. treasuries $ 6,017 $ — $ — $ 6,015
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit 6,352 — 2 6,35(
Corporate bond 8,241 — 7 8,23¢
Certificates of depos 18¢€ — — 18€
$20,79¢ $ — $ 9 $20,78:
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Market
December 31, 201 Cost Gain Loss Value
U.S. treasuries $ 1,00¢ $ 2 $ — $1,01(
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit 7,20( — 2 7,19¢
Certificates of depos 52k — — 52E

$ 8,73¢ $ 2 $ 2 $8,73¢

At March 31, 2012, $7.5 million of these securitiesre scheduled to mature outside of one year.Cldrapany did not realize any gains
or losses on sales of available-for-sale secufitiethe three months ended March 31, 2012. As afdil 31, 2012, none of the securities had
been in a continuous unrealized loss position lotigen one year.

6. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, tagany sold two auction rate securities classiéietbng-term investments with a
par value of $4.0 million. Included in interest asttier income for the three months ended Marcl2812 is a gain of $0.3 million related to
sale.

As of March 31, 2012, the Company held an auctite security with a par value of $2.5 million. Thisction rate security has not
experienced a successful auction since the liquiséiuies experienced in the global credit and ahpiairkets in 2008. As a result the security is
classified as a long-term investment as it is saolegtito mature in 2038. The security was rated BBEtandard and Poor’s as of March 31,
2012. The security continues to pay interest adogrib its stated terms.
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The valuation of the Company’s auction rate segusisubject to uncertainties that are difficulppi@dict. The fair value of the security is
estimated utilizing a discounted cash flow analyBi®e key drivers of the valuation model include #xpected term, collateralization
underlying the security investment, the creditwiortiss of the counterparty, the timing of expectddre cash flows, discount rates, liquidity
and the expected holding period. The security iss @mpared, when possible, to other observabl&ehdata for securities with similar
characteristics. Based on the valuation of therstgcthe Company has recognized cumulative los$&®.6 million as of March 31, 2012, n¢
of which were realized during the three months dridarch 31, 2012. The losses when incurred areded in investment and other income.
The market value of the security has partially veced. Included in other comprehensive income arealized losses of $6,000 and $8,000 for
the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 201fdec#sely. As of March 31, 2012, the Company hambrded cumu ative unrealized gains
of $0.3 million. The resulting carrying value okthuction rate security at March 31, 2012, was $2llion. Any future decline in market value
may result in additional losses being recognized.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company measures fair value as an exit prig@esenting the amount that would be receivedltaseasset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between marfatticipants at the measurement date. As suchyddie is a market-based measurement that
should be determined based on assumptions thaeirgekticipants would use in pricing an assetability. Fair value measurements are bz
on a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which priizéss the inputs used in measuring fair value devid:

. Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted pricestive markets

. Level 2: Inputs, other than the quoted prices tivaanarkets, that are observable either direatlyndirectly; and

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there iddittr no market data, which require the reportintitg to develop its own
assumptions

Cash equivalents, marketable securities and lomg-tevestments measured at fair value are cladsifiehe table below in one of the
three categories described above (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements

March 31, 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Certificates of depos 18¢€ — — 18¢€
Money market fund 49,95¢ — — 49,95¢
U.S. treasurie 6,017 — — 6,017
Corporate bond — 8,23¢ — 8,23¢
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securi — 6,35( — 6,35(
Auction rate securitie — — 2,12¢ 2,12¢

$56,161 $14,58¢ $2,12¢ $72,87¢

Fair Value Measurements

December 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Certificates of depos $ 528 $ — $ — $ 52E
Money market fund 12,77¢ — — 12,77¢
U.S. treasurie 1,01( — — 1,01¢
Governmer-sponsored enterprise securit — 7,19¢ — 7,19¢
Auction rate securitie — — 5,92¢ 5,92¢

$14,31:  $7,19¢  $5,92¢  $27,43¢

The Company'’s investments in U.S. treasury seestitertificates of deposit and money market fiardsvalued based on publicly
available quoted market prices for identical se®sgias of March 31, 2012. The Company determimegdir value of corporate bonds and
other government-sponsored enterprise related ifesuwith the aid of valuations provided by thpdrties using proprietary valuation models
and analytical tools. These valuation models aradyéical tools use market pricing or similar instrents that are both objective and publicly
available, including matrix pricing or reporteddes, benchmark yields, broker/dealer quotes, issureads, two-sided markets, benchmark
securities, bids and/or offers. The Company vatisidhe valuations received from its primary pricuegdors for its level 2 securities by
examining the

10
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inputs used in that vendor’s pricing process artdrdgnes whether they are reasonable and observidideCompany also compares those
valuations to recent reported trades for thosergau The Company did not adjust any of the viitues received from these third parties with
respect to any of its level 2 securities at MarthZ012. The Company did not reclassify any investts between level categories during the
three months ended March 31, 2012. The valuaticghefCompany’s investments in auction rate seegrdire more fully described in Note 6.

Activity for assets measured at fair value usignsicant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is presénitethe table below (in thousands):

Three Months

Ended
March
31, 2012
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 5,92¢
Total net realized gains included in earni (590
Total net unrealized losses included in other cahensive incom (50)
Sales of Level 3 securiti¢ (3,160
Balance at March 31, 20: $  2,12¢
Total gains or losses for the period included inineome attributable to the change in unrealizaitg or losses relatir
to assets still held at the reporting d $ —

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company prosecutes its intellectual propertgtessigorously to obtain the broadest valid sciopéts patents. Due to uncertainty of
the ultimate outcome of patent enforcement actitivesy impact on future operating results or thenpany’s financial condition is not subject
to reasonable estimates.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company loeapme a party to lawsuits involving various mrattd he Company is unaware of
any such lawsuits presently pending against it iyhiedividually or in the aggregate, are deemeleganaterial to the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

9. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, hgany sold 13,909,692 shares of its common stoekgublic offering at a price to
the public of $3.75 per share. Net proceeds fraaofffering, after deducting underwriting discouat&l commissions and other offering
expenses payable by the Company, totaled $48.ibmilll of the shares of common stock were offepaidsuant to two effective shelf
registration statements.

10. ASTELLAS AGREEMENTS

In July 2011, the Company entered into licenseegents with Astellas Pharma Inc., or Astellas, tyngnAstellas exclusive, worldwide,
royalty-bearing licenses under certain of the Camgfsaknow-how and intellectual property to developl commercialize certain products
containing plasmids encoding certain forms of ghrotein B and/or phosphoprotein 65, including Tkérs™ but excluding CyMVectin™.

Under the terms of the license agreements, Astpasa nonrefundable upfront license fee of $2&ildon in 2011. The Company is
also entitled to receive an additional $10.0 milligoon finalization of the general trial design éoPhase 3 registration trial of TransVax™ in
hematopoietic stem cell transplant recipients wisicburred in March of 2012. The Company recogniE@i1 million in license revenue unc
the Astellas agreements during the three monthedehtirch 31, 2012, which included the aforementich®0.0 milestone. There have bee
changes to the milestones included in the licegseesnents that were disclosed in the Company’s 20iilial Report on Form 10-K.

Under the terms of the agreements the Compangadspearforming research and development serviceshwdre being paid for by
Astellas. During the three months ended March 8122the Company recognized $1.0 million of reveralated to these contract services.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, or Report, aord forward-looking statements within the mearoh&ection 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of theries Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, inclugiagements regarding our business,
financial position, the research and developmetiafharmaceutical products based on our patenkd @elivery technologies, the funding
of our research and development efforts, and ctfadements describing our goals, expectationgtiotes or beliefs. Such statements reflect
our current views and assumptions and are sulgjeis and uncertainties, particularly those iehein the process of developing and
commercializing biopharmaceutical products basedwrpatented DNA delivery technologies. Actualtescould differ materially from tho:
projected herein. Factors that could cause or itnré to such differences include, but are nottéahito, those discussed in our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 28dd in our other filings with the SEC, and thoseniified in Part Il, Item 1A entitled
“Risk Factors” beginning on page 21 of this Repa#g.a result, you are cautioned not to rely onéHesward-looking statements. We disclaim
any duty to update any forward-looking statemeneftect events or circumstances that occur afteidate on which such statement is made.

Overview

We research and develop biopharmaceutical prodhasisd on our patented DNA delivery technologiedHermprevention and treatmen
serious or life-threatening diseases. We belieeddalowing areas of research offer the greatestmi@l for neaterm commercialization for
and our partners:

. Vaccines for use in hi¢-risk populations for infectious disease targetsifbich there are significant neet

. Vaccines for general pediatric, adolescent andtguhyulations for infectious disease applicatic

. Cancer vaccines or immunotherapies that compleo@angxisting programs and core expertise;

. Genebased delivery of therapeutic proteins, such aggegic growth factors for treatment of cardiovdacudiseases

We currently have three active independent clirécal preclinical development programs in the acéasfectious disease and cancer
including:

. A fully enrolled ongoing Phase 3 clinical trial ngiour Allovectin® immunotherapeutic in patients with metastatic metaa which
has been funded, up to certain limits, by AnGes M@, or AnGes, through cash payments and egoitystments under a research
and development agreeme

. A completed preclinical program, with an alloweséstigational new drug application, or IND, using €yMVectin™
prophylactic vaccine formulated with our proprigt&faxfectin® adjuvant to prevent cytomegalovirus, or CMV, infeatbefore an
during pregnancy; an

. A preclinical program with therapeutic and proplefile vaccines for herpes simplex virus type 2 folated with our proprietary
Vaxfectin® adjuvant.

We have leveraged our patented technologies thrbcgsiising and collaboration arrangements, suatuagicensing arrangements with
Astellas Pharma Inc., or Astellas, Merck & Co.,.Jrar Merck, Sanofi, AnGes, Aqua Health Ltd. of @da, or Aqua Health, an affiliate of
Novartis Animal Health, and Merial Limited, or Malj a subsidiary of Sanofi, among other biopharmatical companies

In addition, we have licensed complementary teabgiek from leading research institutions and bioplaeeutical companies. We also
have granted non-exclusive, academic licensesnt®bA delivery technology patent estate to 11 legdiesearch institutions including
Stanford, Harvard, Yale and the Massachusettsustdf Technology, or MIT. The non-exclusive aaadelicenses allow university
researchers to use our technology free of chamediacational and internal, non-commercial resepteboses. In exchange, we have the
option to exclusively license from the universitptential commercial applications arising fromithese of our technology on terms to be
negotiated.
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Product Development

We, together with our licensees and collaboratmes currently developing a number of DNA-based weecand therapeutics for the
prevention or treatment of infectious diseases¢eraand cardiovascular diseases. The table belownsuizes our independent programs and
corporate and government collaborations.

Product/Concept Intended Use Development Status! Lead Developer
I ndependent Programs
Allovectin ® cancer immunotherapeuticFirst-line treatment for Phase 3 Vical
metastatic melanorr
CyMVectin™ prophylactic vaccine for Prevent infection before Preclinical complete Vical
cytomegalovirus pregnancy to preclude fetal
transmissior
Therapeutic and prophylactic vaccinesPrevent and protect against ~ Preclinical Vical
for herpes simplex type 2 virus recurring flare-ups, reduce

viral shedding and
transmissior

Corporate Collaborations

TransVax™ therapeutic vaccine for  Protect against CMV infection Phase 3 preparation Astellas
cytomegalovirus after stem cell transplan

TransVax™ therapeutic vaccine 1 Protect against CMV infectic  Phase 2 preparatic Astellas
cytomegalovirus after solid organ transplar

Collategene™ angiogenic therapy Induce local growth of blood  Phase 3 preparation AnGes

encoding Hepatocyte Growth Factor vessels to restore blood
flow to limbs affected by
critical limb ischemie

Apex® -IHN prophylactic vaccine for Prevent infection and disease Marketed in Canada Aqua Health (Novartis)
infectious hematopoietic necrosis in farm-raised salmon when
virus exposed to infected wild
salmon
ONCEPT™ therapeutic cancer vaccinddjunct treatment to increase Marketed in the United States Merial
encoding human tyrosinase survival time of dogs with

oral melanom:

Government Collaborations

Prophylactic and/or therapeutic HIV ~ Prevent and/or treat infection, Phase 2b NIH
vaccine disease, and/or viral sheddi
Tetravalent dengue vaccine Prevent dengue disease Phase 1 Naval Medical Research Cen
caused by all 4 dengue
serotype:

“Research” indicates exploration and/or evaluatiba potential product candidate in a noncliniedddratory setting. “Preclinical”
indicates that a specific product candidate inmctinical setting has shown functional activity ttierelevant to a targeted medical need,
and is advancing toward initial human clinical tegt “Phase 1” clinical trials are typically conded with a small number of patients or
healthy subjects to evaluate safety, determindeadksage range, identify side effects, and, isfs, gain early evidence of
effectiveness. “Phase 2” clinical trials are cortddawith a larger group of patients to evaluate@f’eness of an investigational product
for a defined patient population, and to detern@ioemon short-term side effects and risks associatdthe product candidate. “Phase
3” clinical trials involve large scale, multi-centeomparative trials that are conducted with pasiafflicted with a target disease to
evaluate the overall benerisk relationship of the investigational productldn provide an adequate basis for product labe
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Recent Events

The following events have recently occurred witbpect to our business and our development programs:

TransVax™ Program Update

We recently announced that Astellas Pharma Incfihazed the general design of a pivotal, multiomal Phase 3 trial ¢
TransVax™, a therapeutic cytomegalovirus vaccimarBmsplant recipients which we licensed to AslIIThis progress triggered a
$10 million milestone payment to Vical. Based olidgnce from the U.S. Food and Drug Administratiod ¢he European
Medicines Agency, the companies have confirmed@hY disease will not be the primary endpoint ie tPhase 3 tria

During preparations for the Phase 3 TransVax™ pieric vaccine trial, an error was noted in thenEkéax™ Phase 2 artic
published inThe Lancet Infectious Diseas@sthat the time effect p-values from the repeateshsures linear regression model had
been reported for TransVax™ immunogenicity in platthe treatment effect. A reanalysis of the deith revised p-values did not
result in any chang to the conclusions. A corrigendum statement hag lsebmitted tThe Lancet Infectious Diseas.

Other significant Events

We recently announced that the Naval Medical Rebe@enter, or NMRC initiated a Phase 1 clinicalltaf a tetravalent dengt
DNA vaccine formulated with our Vaxfectin adjuvaihe trial is based on exciting efficacy data framonhuman primate study
published in the journafaccine. We manufactured the vaccine and the adjuvant ftr thee preclinical and clinical studies, and we
are providing regulatory and clinical expertisétte NMRC for the dengue progra

We recently announced that researchers at Ehimeetsitly in Japan and their collaborators have dgpea a Vaxfecti® -
formulated DNA vaccine candidate with the potertiiaprevent transmission of malaria. Results ofitlitéal testing, published in
the journaVaccine, demonstrated that the malaria parasite life cy@e interrupted in mosquitoes fed with malarieeatéd human
red blood cells incubated with serum from vaccidatece. We provided the DNA vaccine plasmid backband the adjuvant used
in the researct

Research, Development and Manufacturing Programs

To date, we have not received revenues from tleeafadur independently developed pharmaceuticalyets and have received minimal
revenues from the sale of commercially marketedypets by our licensees. We earn revenues by peirigreervices under research and
development and manufacturing contracts, from grantl from licensing access to our proprietaryneldygies. Since our inception, we
estimate that we have received approximately $208@libn in revenues from these sources. Revenyesohrce were as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended

March 31,
Source 2012 2011
Astellas supply and services contract $ 1cC $ —
RapidResponse™ DNA manufacturing gr — 0.4
HSV-2 grant — 0.1
Other contract and grar 0.2 —
Total contract and grant revent 1.2 0.5
Astellas licenst $ 10.1 $ —
Other royalties and licens 0.2 0.1
Total royalty and license revenu 10.2 0.1
Total revenue $ 11t $ 06
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Research, development, manufacturing and productists by major program, as well as other costsg &g follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended

March 31,
Program 2012 2011
Allovectin ® $ 4C $ 4.6
CMmVv 3.8 14
Other research, development, manufacturing andugtamh 1.1 1.C
Total research, development, manufacturing andyartsh $ 8¢ $ 7.C

Since our inception through March 31, 2012, wenesté that we have spent approximately $451 miliomesearch, development,
manufacturing and production. Our current indepahdevelopment focus is on our cancer immunotheripdllovectin® , novel DNA
vaccines for CMV and HSV-2, and other clinical gmdclinical targets.

We are conducting a Phase 3 clinical trial usinigvdctin® in patients with recurrent metastatic melma which has been funded, up to
certain limits, by AnGes through cash paymentsemdty investments under a research and developageeeément. We are also developing
TransVax™, CyMVectin™, and HSV-2 vaccine candidated these programs, excluding TransVax™ whichegemtly licensed to Astellas,
will require significant additional funds to advanihrough development to commercialization. Froogption through March 31, 2012, we
have spent approximately $154 million on our Allctie ® program and $68 million on our CMV programs.

We have other product candidates in the reseaage stt can take many years to develop productidates from the initial decision to
screen product candidates, perform preclinicalsaidty studies, and perform clinical trials leadimgto possible approval of a product by the
FDA or comparable foreign agencies. The outcontb@fesearch is unknown until each stage of thentess completed, up through and
including the registration of clinical trials. Acabngly, we are unable to predict which potentiadguct candidates we may proceed with, the
time and cost to complete development, and ultimatbether we will have a product approved by tiAFor comparable foreign agencies.

As a result, we expect to incur substantial opegatsses for at least the next several yearspdosrily to the advancement of our
research and development programs, the cost olifioad studies and clinical trials, spending fartside services, costs related to maintaining
our intellectual property portfolio, costs due tamfacturing activities, costs related to our fies, and possible advancement toward
commercialization activities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accardamith accounting principles generally acceptethUnited States requires that
management make a number of assumptions and essithatt affect the reported amounts of assetslitied revenues and expenses in our
financial statements and accompanying notes. Managebases its estimates on historical informagiaoth assumptions believed to be
reasonable. Although these estimates are basedoagement’s best knowledge of current events androstances that may impact us in the
future, actual results may differ from these estena

Our critical accounting policies are those thagetffour financial statements materially and invavagnificant level of judgment by
management. Our critical accounting policies reg@rdevenue recognition are in the following arde®nse and royalty agreements,
manufacturing contracts, contract services andtgeenues. Our critical accounting policies aflsdude recognition of research and
development expenses and the valuation of longtHared intangible assets.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when the four basic critdri@venue recognition are met: (1) persuasiveendd of an arrangement exists;
(2) delivery has occurred or services renderedth@¥ee is fixed or determinable; and (4) collbiity is reasonably assured. Certain of our
revenue is generated through manufacturing costeatd stand-alone license agreements.

We have entered into multiple-element arrangemémistder to account for the multiple-element agements, we identify the
deliverables included within the agreement andwatal which deliverables represent separate unasafunting. Analyzing the arrangemen
identify deliverables requires the use of judgmant] each deliverable may be an obligation to dekervices, a right or license to use an ¢
or another performance obligation.
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Multiple-element arrangements prior to January 1, 2011

Prior to adopting the revised multiple element gnice on January 1, 2011, we analyzed our multiplaent arrangements to determine
whether the identified deliverables could be actedifior individually as separate units of accountifihe delivered item(s) were considered a
separate unit of accounting if all of the followingteria were met: (1) the delivered item(s) hakige to the customer on a standalone basis;
(2) there is objective and reliable evidence offtievalue of the undelivered item(s); and (3¢ arrangement includes a general right of
return relative to the delivered item, deliveryparformance of the undelivered item(s) is consid@mbable and substantially in our contro
these criteria were not met, the deliverable wamshined with other deliverables in the arrangementaccounted for as a combined unit of
accounting.

Multiple-element arrangements after January 1, 2011

Effective January 1, 2011, we followed the provisi@f ASU No. 2009-13 for all multiple element agreents, including contract
manufacturing, contract services and license ageatsnUnder the revised guidance, the delivered(#ghas value to the customer on a
standalone basis and, if the arrangement includesaral right of return relative to the delivertsin, delivery or performance of the
undelivered item(s) is considered probable andtaukially in our control.

A delivered item is considered a separate unicobanting when the delivered item has value tqpmtner on a standalone basis based
on the consideration of the relevant facts anduonstances for each arrangement. Factors considetleid determination include the research
capabilities of the partner and the availabilityesearch expertise in this field in the generalkmiplace. Arrangement consideration is
allocated at the inception of the agreement tadelhtified units of accounting based on their ie&aselling price. The relative selling price for
each deliverable is determined using vendor sgecHjective evidence, or VSOE, of selling pricehard-party evidence of selling price if
VSOE does not exist. If neither VSOE nor third-pavidence of selling price exists, we use our bstmate of the selling price for the
deliverable. The amount of allocable arrangemensicieration is limited to amounts that are fixedleterminable. The consideration received
is allocated among the separate units of accourding the applicable revenue recognition criteréaagpplied to each of the separate units.
Changes in the allocation of the sales price batvdetivered and undelivered elements can impaemee recognition but do not change the
total revenue recognized under any agreementct$ fand circumstances dictate that the licensstaaslalone value from the undelivered
items, which generally include research and devatag services and the manufacture of drug prodtietdjcense is identified as a separate
unit of accounting and the amounts allocated tditemse are recognized upon the delivery of tbense, assuming the other revenue
recognition criteria have been met. However, ifélhmounts allocated to the license through theivelaelling price allocation exceed the
upfront license fee, the amount recognized upord#tigery of the license is limited to the upfrdee received. If facts and circumstances
dictate that the license does not have standalalue vthe transaction price, including any upfiagnse fee payments received, are allocated
to the identified separate units of accounting mewbgnized as those items are delivered.

The terms of our partnership agreements providenftastone payments upon achievement of certainlaggy and commercial events.
Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted on a prosebasis the Milestone Method of accounting ur&i8d 2010-17. Under the Milestone
Method, we recognize consideration that is contimggon the achievement of a milestone in its efytias revenue in the period in which the
milestone is achieved only if the milestone is saibve in its entirety. A milestone is considesedbstantive when it meets all of the following
three criteria: 1) The consideration is commenguath either the entity’s performance to achidwe iilestone or the enhancement of the
value of the delivered item(s) as a result of agjgeoutcome resulting from the entity’s perfornearnto achieve the milestone, 2) The
consideration relates solely to past performancé,3 The consideration is reasonable relativél tof ghe deliverables and payment terms
within the arrangement. A milestone is definedmgeent (i) that can only be achieved based in &bolin part on either the entity’s
performance or on the occurrence of a specificauteresulting from the entity’s performance, (@) fvhich there is substantive uncertainty at
the date the arrangement is entered into thatwbetevill be achieved and (iii) that would resultadditional payments being due to us.

Contract Services, Grant and Royalty Revenue

We recognize revenue from contract services anek&dovernment research grants during the peniathich the related expenditures
are incurred and related payments for those serérereceived or collection is reasonably assiRegalties to be received based on sales of
licensed products by our partners incorporatinglicensed technology are recognized when received.
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Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist of egieasirred in performing research and developraetitities including salaries and
benefits, facilities and other overhead expendescal trials, contract services and other out@apenses. Research and development expense
are charged to operations as they are incurred.

We assess our obligations to make milestone payntleat may become due for licensed or acquirechtdoly to determine whether the
payments should be expensed or capitalized. Weehailestone payments to research and developmpatse when:

. The technology is in the early stage of developraadthas no alternative us
. There is substantial uncertainty of the technologgroduct being successfi
. There will be difficulty in completing the remaigjrdevelopment; an

. There is substantial cost to complete the w

Capitalization and Valuation of Long-Lived and I ntangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives consiktapitalized legal costs incurred in connectiagthywatents, patent applications pending
and technology license agreements. Payments tara@jlicense to use a proprietary technology agstalized if the technology is expected to
have alternative future use in multiple researdh@development projects. We amortize costs of apgggt@atents, patent applications pending
and license agreements over their estimated ubegs| or terms of the agreements, whichever apetsh

For patents pending, we amortize the costs oveshbeter of a period of twenty years from the ddtéling the application or, if license
the term of the license agreement. We re-assesss#ial lives of patents when they are issued,lw@never events or changes in circumstances
indicate the useful lives may have changed. Famatand patent applications pending that we abgnde charge the remaining unamortized
accumulated costs to expense.

Intangible assets and long-lived assets are ewaldat impairment at least annually or whenevenever changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying value may not be rezable. If the review indicates that intangibleeas®r long-lived assets are not recoverable,
their carrying amount would be reduced to fair ealbactors we consider important that could triggeimpairment review include the
following:

. A significant change in the manner of our use efahquired asset or the strategy for our overalinass; and/c

. A significant negative industry or economic tre

In the event we determine that the carrying valui@tangible assets or long-lived assets is nabverable based upon the existence of
one or more of the above indicators of impairmesg,may be required to record impairment chargethiese assets. As of March 31, 2012,

largest group of intangible assets with finite iiecluded patents and patents pending for our @RWery technology, consisting of
intangible assets with a net carrying value of agpnately $2.8 million.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For information on the recent accounting pronoureeswhich may impact our business, see Note heoNbtes to Financial Stateme
included in this Report.

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2012, Compared with Three Months Ended March 31, 2011

Total RevenuesTotal revenues increased $10.8 million to $11ilian for the three months ended March 31, 201@qf $0.6 million fol
the three months ended March 31, 2011. Our licanderoyalty revenue increased by $10.1 million Whi@s primarily the result of the
recognition of $10.1 million of revenue relatedbtr TransVax™ license agreements with Astellas. éutract and grant revenue increase
$0.7 million which was primarily the result of arciease of $1.0 million in contract service reveregmgnized under our agreements with
Astellas, which was partially offset by a decreimseur grant revenues.
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Research and Development Expendeesearch and development expenses increasechitoh, or 49.8%, to $6.4 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2012, from $4.3 milliontfer three months ended March 31, 2011. This inereas primarily due to a sub-license
payment obligation to the City of Hope relatedhe TransVax™ license milestone payment we earnddglthe three months ended
March 31, 2012.

Manufacturing and Production Expensddanufacturing and production expenses decrea@&drmillion, or 10.0%, to $2.5 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2012, from $2li&mior the three months ended March 31, 2011s Tecrease was primarily the result of
the capitalization of $0.6 million in manufacturiongsts related to the production of TransVax™ uroderservice and supply agreements with
Astellas which was patrtially offset by an increas@eadcount.

General and Administrative ExpenséSeneral and administrative expenses increasddmillion, or 16.0%, to $2.7 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2012, from $2.3 milliontfar three months ended March 31, 2011. This inereas primarily the result of higher
overall wages.

Investment and Other Income, Nétvestment and other income, net increased $861®$384,000 for the three months ended
March 31, 2012, from $23,000 for the three montideel March 31, 2011. This increase was primar#yrésult of a gain recognized on the
sale of auction rate securities during the threathmended March 31, 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have financed our operatgmmarily through private placements of preferamd common stock, public
offerings of common stock, and revenues from owrations. From our inception through March 31, 2@t have received approximately
$209.7 million in revenues from performing servicesler research and development and manufactusimgacts, from grants and from
licensing access to our proprietary technologied,vae have raised net proceeds of approximatel® B4million from the sale of equity
securities. Cash, cash equivalents, marketableifesyand longerm investments, including restricted cash, tot&§@6.4 million at March 3!
2012, compared with $56.4 million at December 3,12 The increase in our cash, cash equivalentsnamkletable securities for the three
months ended March 31, 2012, was primarily thelte$uahe receipt of $48.7 million in net proceaétated to the sale of 13.9 million of our
common shares in a public offering.

Net cash used in operating activities was $8.0oniland $8.7 million for the three months ended déha81, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The decrease in net cash used in operating aesvitir the three months ended March 31, 2012, coedpaith the prior year period, was
primarily the result of net income of $244,000 floe 2012 period compared to a net loss of $8.7anilh the 2011 period, and was largely
offset by an increase in receivables, both of wiiehe related to the recognition of $10.1 millidrrevenue related to our TransVax™ license
agreements with Astellas.

Net cash used in investing activities was $8.9iamland $12.2 million for the three months endedde81, 2012 and 2011, respectivi
The decrease in net cash used in investing aetivitir the three months ended March 31, 2012, coedpaith the prior year period, was
primarily the result of an increase in proceedeired from the sale of marketable securities.

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitiess $48.7 million and $(0.1) million for the thme®nths ended March 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. The increase in net cash peavlty financing activities for the three monthsesharch 31, 2012, compared with the p
year period, was the result of net proceeds reddiven the sale of our common stock during theghmonths ended March 31, 20.

A discussion of our exposure to auction rate séeasris included in Part 1, Item 3 of this Repartier the heading “Quantitative and
Quialitative Disclosures About Market Risk.”

We expect to incur substantial additional researuhdevelopment expenses, manufacturing and pliodustpenses, and general and
administrative expenses, including continued ingesan costs related to personnel, preclinicalcinital testing, outside services, facilities,
intellectual property and possible commercializatiOur future capital requirements will depend camgnfactors, including continued scient
progress in our research and development progitimmscope and results of preclinical testing aimdaal trials, the time and costs involved in
obtaining regulatory approvals, the costs involirefiling, prosecuting, enforcing and defendingegdtclaims, the impact of competing
technological and market developments, the costarfufacturing scale-up and validation, and possibfamercialization activities and
arrangements. We may seek additional funding throegearch and development relationships with Iskeiaotential corporate collaborators.
We may also seek additional funding through pubtiprivate financings. We currently have on fileedfective shelf registration statement t
allows us to raise up to an additional $53.4 millicom the sale of common stock, preferred stoekt decurities and/or warrants. However,
additional financing may not be available on falmbeaerms or at all. If additional funding is neadable, we anticipate that our available cash
and existing sources of funding will be adequatssttisfy our cash needs at least through Decenmh&(3.3.
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Contractual Obligations

Under our Merck, Sanofi, AnGes, Merial and Agua lfeagreements, we are required to pay up to 10&edéin initial upfront
monetary payments, and a small percentage of soyeadty payments, to the Wisconsin Alumni Researgtrfdation and/or the University of
Michigan. Under our license agreements with Astellee are required to make certain payments t&€ityeof Hope and CytRx Corporation in
connection with the development and commercialiratif our products licensed by Astellas. In additicertain technology license agreements
require us to make other payments if we or ourisebsees advance products through clinical devedopnfror programs developed with the
support of U.S. government funding, the U.S. goregnt may have rights to resulting products withmayment of royalties to us.

We may be required to make future payments toioensors based on the achievement of milestondertiein various in-licensing
agreements. In most cases, these milestone payarenased on the achievement of development atategy milestones, including the
exercise of options to obtain licenses relategpezsic disease targets, commencement of varioasgshof clinical trials, filing of product
license applications, approval of product licerfses) the FDA or a foreign regulatory agency, anel finst commercial sale of a related
product. Payment for the achievement of milestameker our in-license agreements is highly speadatind subject to a number of
contingencies.

The aggregate amount of additional milestone paysniat we could be required to pay under all afindicense agreements in place at
March 31, 2012, is approximately $20.8 millionvdiich approximately $12.9 million is related to andependent programs and corporate
government collaborations which are currently inichl development. These amounts assume thatrathining milestones associated with the
milestone payments are met. In the event that mtdtbense approval for any of the related prodigtshtained, we may be required to make
royalty payments in addition to these milestonenparyts. Although we believe that some of the milessocontained in our in-license
agreements may be achieved, it is highly unlikebt & significant number of them will be achievBdcause the milestones are highly
contingent and we have limited control over whetherdevelopment and regulatory milestones wilhbleieved, we are not in a position to
reasonably estimate how much, if any, of the paéntilestone payments will ultimately be paid vanen. Additionally, under the in-license
agreements, many of the milestone events are delatgrogress in clinical trials which will takevegal years to achieve.

In addition, we have undertaken certain commitmeantier license agreements with collaborators, anuindemnification agreements
with our officers and directors. Under the liceageeements with our collaborators, we have agreedritinue to maintain and defend the
patent rights licensed to the collaborators anthéncase of our agreements with Astellas, haveealjto undertake certain development and
manufacturing activites. Under the indemnificatagreements with our officers and directors, we fegreed to indemnify those individuals
for any expenses and liabilities in the event tifraatened, pending or actual investigation, latysuicriminal or investigative proceeding.

We have employment agreements that contain sevesrngngements with each of our three executivieas and three of our other
executives. Under the agreements with the execoffieers we are obligated to pay severance ifeveinate the executive officer’s
employment without “cause,” or if the executiveioéf resigns for “good reason,” as defined in theeaments, within the periods set forth
therein. The severance for the executive officersists of continued base salary payments at #redhrrent rate, including the payment of
health insurance premiums, for the period specifieeach agreement, which ranges from 12 to 18 hsppius a payment equal to between
and one and a half times the executive’s cash bionilre previous year. In addition, the executifficers receive accelerated vesting on all
their unvested stock awards as if they had remaénsgloyed by us for between 12 and 18 months flwrdate of termination. In the event
the termination occurs within 24 months of a “chamgcontrol,” as defined in the agreements, tversce for the executive officers consists
of lump sum payments equal to between 18 and 24hmaaf base salary at the then-current rate, thenpat of health insurance premiums for
the period specified in each agreement, which raffigen 12 to 18 months, plus a payment equal tevdoem one and one and a half times the
executive’s cash bonus in the previous year. Intiadd all outstanding unvested stock awards wélétvimmediately. The severance for the
other executive consists of continued paymentiseathien-current base compensation rate for a pefistk months. All of the agreements
specify that any earnings from employment or cairsgilduring this period will offset any salary contation payments due from us. The
maximum payments due under these employment agreemveuld have been $3.3 million if each such etieewofficer and other executive
were terminated at March 31, 2012.
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ITEM3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We are subject to interest rate risk. Our investrpertfolio is maintained in accordance with oweéstment policy which defines
allowable investments, specifies credit qualityndrds and limits the credit exposure of any siiggaer. Our investment portfolio consists of
cash equivalents, both restricted and non-resthicterketable securities and long-term investmdrits.average maturity of our investments,
excluding our auction rate securities, is approxetyahree months. Our investments are classifeedvailable-for-sale securities.

To assess our interest rate risk, we performeadsitdgty analysis projecting an ending fair valofeour cash equivalents and current
marketable securities using the following assumnm®i@ 12-month time horizon, a 9-month average rta@nd a 150-basis-point increase in
interest rates. This pro forma fair value woulddaeen $0.2 million lower than the reported falueeof our investments at March 31, 2012.

All of our investment securities are classifiechaailable-for-sale and therefore reported on tHarze sheet at market value. Our
investment securities consist of high-grade auatide securities, corporate debt securities aneémorent agency securities. As of March 31,
2012, our long-term investments included a (atvaduwe) $2.5 million auction rate security securgdrunicipal bonds. At March 31, 2012, the
auction rate security we held maintained a StandaddPoor’s credit rating of BBB. The auction regeurity is a debt instrument with a long-
term maturity and with an interest rate that ietés short intervals through auctions. The coodaiin the global credit markets have preve
some investors from liquidating their holdings atton rate securities because the amount of g@E=usubmitted for sale has exceeded the
amount of purchase orders for such securitietelfet is insufficient demand for the securitieshatttme of an auction, the auction may not be
completed and the interest rates may be reseettepgrmined higher rates. When auctions for theseriies fail, the investments may not be
readily convertible to cash until a future auctadrthese investments is successful or they areeradd or mature.

Since February 2008, there has been insufficiemtzohel at auction for our auction rate security laliflarch 31, 2012. As a result, this
security is currently not liquid, and we could leguired to hold it until it is redeemed by the &sar to maturity. As of March 31, 2012, we
recognized $0.6 million of losses related to thetian rate security by adjusting its carrying valliee market value of the security has parti
recovered from the lows that created the losseafAarch 31, 2012, we had recorded cumulative alimed gains of $0.3 million. Any future
decline in market value may result in additionalsies being recognized.

The valuation of our auction rate security is sabfe uncertainties that are difficult to predi€he fair value of the security is estimated
utilizing a discounted cash flow analysis or ottygre of valuation model as of March 31, 2012. Theg #rivers of the valuation model include
the expected term, collateralization underlyinggbeurity investment, the creditworthiness of tberterparty, the timing of expected future
cash flows, discount rates, and the expected hplaéniod. This security was also compared, whesiples to other observable market data for
securities with similar characteristics.

In the event we need to access the funds thatareurrently liquid, we will not be able to do sdtlmout the possible loss of principal,
until a future auction for this investment is susfel or it is redeemed by the issuer or it matuifege are unable to sell this security in the
market or it is not redeemed, then we may be reduw hold it to maturity. We do not anticipateeged to access the funds for operational
purposes for the foreseeable future. We will cargito monitor and evaluate this investment on ayjoimg basis for impairment. Based on our
ability to access our cash and other short-terrastments, our expected operating cash flows, andther sources of cash, we do not
anticipate that the potential illiquidity of thisviestment will affect our ability to execute ourr@nt business plan.

ITEM4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DiscloserControls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the desigh @peration of our disclosure controls and procesilas such term is defined in Rule 13a-15
(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange At984, as amended, as of the end of the periodredvby this Report. Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer andngipal financial officer concluded that our disalos controls and procedures were effective
and were operating at the reasonable assurandeakewéMarch 31, 2012.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirng

Management has determined that there were no &ignifchanges in our internal control over finahmgorting that occurred during the
three months ended March 31, 2012, that have raliyesiffected, or are reasonably likely to matdyialffect our internal control over financial
reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the risks describebbw, together with all of the other informatiorcinded in this Report, and in our other
filings with the SEC, before deciding whether tedst in or continue to hold our common stock. Tikksrdescribed below are all material risks
currently known, expected or reasonably foresedaples. If any of these risks actually occurs, lousiness, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flow could be seriously harridis could cause the trading price of our commoulsto decline, resulting in a loss of all
part of your investment.

The risk factors set forth below with an asterigknext to the title are new risk factors or rigicfors containing changes, including any
material changes, from the risk factors previoas$glosed in Item 1A of our Annual Report on For@K for the year ended December 31,
2011, as filed with the SEC.

None of our independently developed product candidates has been approved for sale, and we have a limited number of independently
developed product candidatesin clinical trials. If we do not develop commercially successful products, we may be forced to curtail or cease
operations.

All of our independently developed product candidadre either in research or development. We nwmturt a substantial amount of
additional research and development before any &t.freign regulatory authority will approve anfyaur product candidates. Limited data
exist regarding the efficacy of DNA vaccines orrigeutics compared with conventional vaccines erapeutics. Results of our research and
development activities may indicate that our pradandidates are unsafe or ineffective. In thigcesgulatory authorities will not approve
them.

For example, our independently developed produandlidates currently in clinical development inclusleovectin ® , for which we
announced the completion of enroliment of a Phade®al trial in 2010. We have completed predaldiwork on CyMVectin™ and have
begun preclinical work on a HSV-2 vaccine. We maymeet the primary endpoint of the Allovectin Itfiar which a Special Protocol
Assessment agreement is in place with the FDA. V&g not conduct Phase 1 CyMVectin™ or HSV-2 vactiiads, and the future trials, if
any, may not demonstrate sufficient efficacy toprpfurther product development.

Additionally, we are in early stages of developmeith other product candidates. These product ckates will require significant costs
to advance through the development stages. If prarfuct candidates are advanced through clini@détrthe results of such trials may not
support approval by the FDA or comparable foreigarecies. Even if approved, our products may natdsemercially successful, particularly
if they do not gain market acceptance among phasg;ipatients, healthcare payers and relevant alegimmunities. If we fail to develop and
commercialize our products, we may be forced teadlusr cease operations.

We are dependent on our license agreements with Astellas to further develop and commercialize TransVax ™. Thefailure to maintain
these agreements, or the failure of Astellas to perform its obligations under these agreements, could negatively impact our business.

Pursuant to the terms of our license agreementsAsgitellas, we granted to Astellas exclusive worttewights to develop and
commercialize certain products, including TransVakiif excluding CyMVectin™, for the control and peetion of CMV infection in
immunocompromised patients, including transplaoipients and transplant donors, and pursuant teettmes of our supply and services
agreement with Astellas, we are obligated to perfoertain development activities and supply Asgelléth its product requirements for
development and initial commercialization actisti€onsequently, our ability to generate any reesritom TransVax™ depends on Astellas’
ability to develop, obtain regulatory approvals &md successfully commercialize TransVax™. We Heawigéed control over the amount and
timing of resources that Astellas will dedicatdtiese efforts.
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We are subject to a number of other risks assatiatéh our dependence on our license agreemenitsAgitellas, including:

. Astellas may not comply with applicable regulatgoidelines with respect to developing or commeixziiad TransVax™, whicl
could adversely impact sales or future developroéiransVax™

. We and Astellas could disagree as to future devedop plans and Astellas may delay, fail to commercgtop future clinical trial
or other developmen

. There may be disputes between us and Astellasidimg disagreements regarding the license agresméiat may result in (1) the
delay of or failure to achieve developmental, ratpdy and commercial objectives that would resuthilestone or royalty
payments, (2) the delay or termination of any fatdevelopment or commercialization of TransVax™/an(3) costly litigation or
arbitration that diverts our managen’s attention and resource

. Astellas may not provide us with timely and acceiiaformation regarding development, sales and ateuty activities or supply
forecasts, which could adversely impact our abttitgomply with our service and supply obligatida®Astellas and manage our
own inventory of TransVax™, as well as our abititygenerate accurate financial foreca

. Business combinations or significant changes irees’ business strategy may adversely affect Ast’ ability or willingness tc
perform its obligations under our license agreesie

. Astellas may not properly defend our intellectualperty rights, or may use our proprietary inforimatin such a way as to invite
litigation that could jeopardize or invalidate antellectual property rights or expose us to pagtitigation;

. The royalties we are eligible to receive from Astelmay be reduced based upon Astellas’ and olityabi maintain or defend our
intellectual property rights and the presence ofegie competitors

. Limitations on our or an acquir's ability to maintain or pursue development or cartialization of products that are competit
with TransVax™ could deter a potential acquisitidrus that our stockholders may otherwise viewexrseficial; anc

. If Astellas is unsuccessful in developing, obtainiegulatory approvals for or commercializing Thdag™, we may not receiv
any additional milestone or royalty payments urtterlicense agreements and our business prospetfancial results may be
materially harmec

The license agreements and supply and servicesragre are subject to early termination, includimgpuigh Astellas’ right to terminate
upon advance notice to us if Astellas reasonaltigraenes that further development and/or commeeeiibn will not be beneficial for
Astellas. If the agreements are terminated eaymay not be able to find another collaboratotliercommercialization and further
development of TransVax™ on acceptable terms, ali,zind we may be unable to pursue continuedldpreent or commercialization of
TransVax™ on our own.

Our revenues partially depend on the development and commercialization of productsin collaboration with others to whom we have
licensed our technologies. I f our other collaborators or licensees do not successfully develop and commercialize products covered by these
arrangements, or if we are unable to find collaborators or licenseesin the future, we may not be able to derive revenues from these
arrangements, we may |lose opportunities to validate our DNA delivery technologies, or we may be forced to curtail our development and
commercialization effortsin these areas.

In addition to our license agreements with AsteNes have licensed, and may continue to licensetemhnologies to corporate
collaborators and licensees for the research, dprent and commercialization of specified prodaetdidates. Our revenues partially depend
upon the ability of these collaborators and licess® successfully develop and commercialize prisdemvered by these arrangements. In
addition, our licensees Astellas and AnGes havdywocandidates in advanced stage of clinical dgreént, for which we believe regulatory
approval would provide important further validatiohour DNA delivery technologies. The developmantl commercialization efforts of our
collaborators and licensees are subject to the siskseand uncertainties described above with idpeour independently developed product
candidates.

22



Table of Contents

Some collaborators or licensees may not succetetinproduct development efforts. It is possilblattAnGes or any of our other
collaborators or licensees may be unable to olé&gjnlatory approval of product candidates usingtecinnologies or successfully market and
commercialize any such products for which regujapproval is obtained. In September 2010, AnGesanced that after a series of
extensive consultations with the Japanese Pharriealsuand Medical Devices Agency, it would be witiawing its NDA in Japan. Also in
September 2010, another one of our licensees, Samufunced that NV1FGF, an angiogenic growth faitterapeutic for which Sanofi had
licensed our DNA delivery technology, did not met primary endpoint in a global Phase 3 trial.@dttollaborators or licensees may not
devote sufficient time or resources to the programwered by these arrangements, and we may haitedior no control over the time or
resources allocated by these collaborators orsiees to these programs. The occurrence of angsé thvents may cause us to derive little or
no revenue from these arrangements, lose oppadesindt validate our DNA delivery technologies, orce us to curtail or cease our
development and commercialization efforts in thasas.

Our collaborators and licensees may breach or tat@itheir agreements with us, including somertiret terminate their agreements
without cause at any time subject to certain pridtten notice requirements, and we may be unsstakis entering into and maintaining ott
collaborative arrangements for the developmentcamimercialization of products using our technolegléwe are unable to maintain existing
collaboration arrangements or enter into new oosability to generate licensing, milestone oraiby revenues would be materially impaired.

Some of our independent product candidates and some of those under development by our sublicensees incorporate technologies we
have licensed from others. If we are unable to retain rights to use these technologies, we or our sublicensees may not be able to market
products incorporating these technologies on a commercially feasible basis, if at all.

We have licensed certain technologies from corgoratlaborators and research institutions, andicedded certain of such technologies
to others, for use in the research, developmentantnercialization of product candidates. Our pmdievelopment efforts and those of our
sublicensees partially depend upon continued atodbgse technologies. For example, we or ounsioes may breach or terminate our
agreements, or disagree on interpretations of tagegements, which could prevent continued acoegese technologies. If we were unabl
resolve such matters on satisfactory terms, olt,a@ or our sublicensees may be unable to devahmbcommercialize our products, and we
may be forced to curtail or cease operations.

(*)We have a history of net losses. We expect to continue to incur net losses and we may not achieve or maintain profitability.

To date, we have not sold, or received approvaeth any pharmaceutical products. We do not exfeesell any pharmaceutical products
for at least the next several years. Our net lossge approximately $7.3 million, $30.4 million a$#8.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectivelypfAsarch 31, 2012, we had incurred cumulative nssés totaling approximately $324.8
million. Moreover, we expect that our net lossel @@ntinue and may increase for the foreseealilegéuWe may not be able to achieve
projected results if we generate lower revenugsagive lower investment income than expected,@meur greater expenses than expected,
or all of the above. We may never generate suffigigoduct revenue to become profitable. We algieeito have quarter-to-quarter
fluctuations in revenues, expenses, and lossess sbmihich could be significant.

We may need additional capital in the future. If additional capital is not available, we may have to curtail or cease operations.

We may need to raise more money to continue thearel and development necessary to bring our ptedmenarket and to establish
marketing and additional manufacturing capabilitié® may seek additional funds through public aregpe stock offerings, government
contracts and grants, arrangements with corporgborators, borrowings under lease lines of ¢redother sources. We currently have on
file a shelf registration statement that allowsaigaise up to an additional $53.4 million from gae of common stock, preferred stock, debt
securities and/or warrants. However, we may nalhie to raise additional funds on favorable terongt all. Conditions in the credit markets
and the financial services industry may make ecaiity debt financing more difficult to obtain, andymegatively impact our ability to
complete financing transactions. To the extentWwtaise additional funds by issuing equity sa@sj our stockholders may experience
significant dilution. Any debt financing, if avab&, may involve restrictive covenants, such agétions on our ability to incur additional
indebtedness and other operating restrictionscitnad adversely impact our ability to conduct ousiness.
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If we are unable to obtain additional funds, we rhaye to scale back our development of new produetisice our workforce or license
to others products or technologies that we otherwigsuld seek to commercialize ourselves. The amoumoney we may need would depend
on many factors, including:

. The progress of our research and development prog
. The scope and results of our preclinical studiesdinical trials; anc

. The time and costs involved in: obtaining necessagylatory approvals; filing, prosecuting and eaifiog patent claims; scaling up
our manufacturing capabilities; and the commermaiedngements we may establi

Theregulatory approval process is expensive, time consuming and uncertain, which may prevent us and our collaborators and
licensees from obtaining required approvals for the commercialization of our products.

Our product candidates under development and thioser collaborators and licensees, including Aatelare subject to extensive and
rigorous regulations by numerous governmental aittee in the United States and other countries fdgulatory approval process takes many
years and will require us to expend substantiadueses. For example, the FDA has provided onlytéohiguidelines concerning the size
scope of clinical trials required for gene-basestdipeutic and vaccine products.

Therefore, U.S. or foreign regulations could prévardelay regulatory approval of our productsimit our and our collaborators and
licensees’ ability to develop and commercialize prrducts. Delays could:

. Impose costly procedures on our activities anddtafour collaborators and license

. Delay or prevent our receipt of developmental angercial milestones from our collaborators andrgses
. Diminish any competitive advantages that we orpraducts attain; c

. Otherwise negatively affect our results of operagiand cash flow:

We have no experience in filing a Biologics Licedg®plication, or BLA, or NDA, with the FDA. BecauseBLA or NDA must be
submitted to and approved by the FDA before anyufproduct candidates may be commercialized,ak of experience may impede our
ability to obtain FDA approval in a timely mann#rat all, which in turn would delay or preventfssm commercializing those
products. Similarly, our lack of experience witlspect to obtaining regulatory approvals in coustdther than the United States may impede
our ability to commercialize our products in th@seintries.

We believe that the FDA and comparable foreign leguy bodies will regulate separately each prodocitaining a particular gene
depending on its intended use. Presently, to comialze any product we and our collaborators aceinsees must file a regulatory application
for each proposed use. We and our collaboratordieemsees must conduct clinical studies to dematesthe safety and efficacy of the proc
necessary to obtain FDA or foreign regulatory atith@pproval. The results obtained so far in dimical trials and those of our collaborators
and licensees may not be replicated in ongoingitoiré trials, or the results may be subject to vayynterpretation on whether they are
sufficient to support approval for commercializatid@ his may prevent any of our product candidatesh freceiving approval for commercial
sale.

We use recombinant DNA molecules in our productidates, and therefore we and our collaboratordieedsees also must comply
with guidelines instituted by the NIH and its Ofiof Biotechnology Activities. The NIH could restror delay the development of our product
candidates.

If any of our product candidates receive regulatgproval, the FDA or other foreign regulatory ages may still impose significant
restrictions on the indicated uses or marketingusfproduct candidates or impose ongoing requireésifen potentially costly post-approval
studies. In addition, regulatory agencies subjgmioduct, its manufacturer and the manufacturecdlifies to continual review and periodic
inspections. If a regulatory agency discovers meslly unknown problems with a product or a prodiass, including adverse events of
unanticipated severity or frequency, or problemthhe facility where the product is manufacturgdegulatory agency may impose
restrictions on that product or product class,@llaborators and licensees or us, including reagiwithdrawal of a product from the market.
Our product candidates will also be subject to amg&DA and other foreign regulatory agency requigats for the labeling, packaging,
storage, advertising, promotion, record-keeping utthmission of safety and other post-market infeionaon the product. If we or our
collaborators and licensees fail to maintain refgmacompliance after receiving marketing approvad,or our collaborators and licensees may
be unable to market our products and our businasls suffer.
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Adverse events or the perception of adverse eventsin the field of gene therapy, or with respect to our product candidates, may
negatively impact regulatory approval or public perception of our products.

The commercial success of some of our product danes will depend in part on public acceptancéefuse of gene therapy for
preventing or treating human diseases. Seriousrsehevents, including patient deaths, have occunretinical trials utilizing viral delivery
systems to deliver therapeutic genes to the p&itargeted cells. Although none of our currentdarcts or studies utilize viral delivery
systems, these adverse events, as well as anyaatherse events in the field of gene therapy ttet atcur in the future, may negatively
influence public perception of gene therapy in gahéf public perception is influenced by clainteat gene therapy is unsafe, our product
candidates may not be accepted by the generalcpabihe medical community.

Future adverse events in gene therapy or the thiotdogy industry could also result in greater goveental regulation, stricter labeling
requirements and potential regulatory delays intéiséing or approval of our potential products. Amgreased scrutiny could delay or increase
the costs of our product development efforts aricéil trials. In addition, any adverse events thay occur in our clinical trials and any
resulting publicity may cause regulatory delaysthierwise affect our product development effortslvical trials.

Some of our potential products may be administevgzhtients who are suffering from, or are vulnégdb, serious diseases or other
conditions which can themselves be life-threateming often result in the death of the patient.&s@mple, one patient in our Allovectin
Phase 2 trial conducted in 2000, died from progvesdisease more than two months after receividguilctin® and other cancer therapies.
death was originally reported as unrelated totbattment. Following an autopsy, the death was ssiflad as “probably related” to the
treatment because the possibility could not bedrolet. We do not believe Allovectin was a signifitéactor in the patient’s death. Patient
deaths in our clinical trials, even if caused bg-pkisting diseases or conditions, could negatiaéfigct the perception of our product
candidates. In addition, in our TransVax™ Phas#al, tve administered TransVax™ to patients whoenatrrisk of CMV reactivation.
Although we do not believe our vaccine candidatadd:cause the diseases they are designed to pagf@inist, a temporal relationship betw
vaccination and disease onset could be perceivedussal. Some of our products are designed to Etteimmune responses, and those
responses, if particularly strong or uncontrolleaild result in local or systemic adverse eveniduding latent adverse events.

(*)Our patents and proprietary rights may not provide uswith any benefit and the patents of others may prevent us from
commercializing our products.

As of March 31, 2012, we were the assignee or s@ase of 76 issued U.S. and foreign patents. Wataia our issued patents by
paying maintenance fees to the patent office im eacintry when due. Where appropriate, we partieipalegal proceedings to vigorously
defend against the revocation or withdrawal of patents. The scope and nature of these proceegiemgsally differ depending on the country
in which they are initiated. If we are not succabksf defending our patents, we may lose all ot p&pur proprietary rights related to those
patents in these geographic regions.

As of March 31, 2012, we were also prosecuting &3ding patent applications in the United Statesiaridreign countries that cover
various aspects of our proprietary technologiesjmmuding patent applications for which we areoeassignee and that are being prosecutt
our partners.

We may not receive any patents from our currerdrgapplications. Issued patents provide exclysfeit only a limited time period,
after which they no longer serve to protect praprigtechnologies or to provide any commercial atlage. Moreover, if patents are issued to
us, governmental authorities may not allow clainfficGent to protect our technologies and produ€tthers may also challenge or seek to
circumvent or invalidate our patents. In that eyém rights granted under our patents may be ozte to protect our proprietary technolog
or to provide any commercial advantage.

In addition, the Leahy-Smith America Invents Aattloe Leahy-Smith Act, was recently signed into kvd includes a number of
significant changes to United States patent laves€hinclude changes in the way patent applicatiglhbe prosecuted and may also affect
patent litigation. The U.S. Patent and Trademafic®is currently developing regulations and praged to administer the Leahy-Smith Act,
and many of the substantive changes to patentdaacéated with the Leahy-Smith Act will not becoeifective until one year or 18 months
after its enactment. Accordingly, it is not cledrat; if any, impact the Leahy-Smith Act will have the cost of prosecuting our patent
applications, our ability to obtain patents baseaor patent applications and our ability to enéooc defend our issued patents. An inability to
obtain, enforce and defend patents covering oyrpetary technologies would materially and adversélect our business prospects and
financial condition.
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Some components of our gene-based product cangidegeor may become, patented by others. As #,resumay be required to obtain
licenses to conduct research, to manufacture, oratdket such products. Licenses may not be availatlcommercially reasonable terms, or at
all, which may impede our ability to commercialer products.

The NIH and the FDA jointly developed the Genetiod¥fication Clinical Research Information SystemGeMCRIS, an Internet-based
database of human gene transfer trials. GeMCRIBlesandividuals to easily view information on pautar characteristics of clinical gene
transfer trials. Although GeMCRIS includes spesidurity features designed to protect patient pyivand confidential commercial
information, these security features may be inadeziy designed or enforced, potentially resultimglisclosure of confidential commercial
information. In addition, the NIH, in collaboratiovith the FDA, has developed an Internet site, i€diTrials.gov, which provides public
access to information on clinical trials and thesults for a wide range of diseases and conditieatire disclosures of such confidential
commercial information may result in loss of adweay@ of competitive secrets.

The legal proceedings to obtain and defend patents, and litigation of third-party claims of intellectual property infringement, could
require usto spend money and could impair our operations.

Our and our collaborators’, including Astellas’ceass will depend in part on our, or our collabarsit ability to obtain patent protection
for our products and processes, both in the UrSitaties and in other countries. The patent positidibéotechnology and pharmaceutical
companies, however, can be highly uncertain andii@complex legal and factual questions. Therefibiie difficult to predict the breadth of
claims allowed in the biotechnology and pharmacaifields.

We also rely on confidentiality agreements with oorporate collaborators, employees, consultardscartain contractors to protect our
proprietary technologies. However, these agreenteatsbe breached and we may not have adequate iestiedsuch breaches. In addition,
our trade secrets may otherwise become known epidently discovered by our competitors.

Protecting intellectual property rights can be vexpensive. Litigation may be necessary to enfpetents issued to us or to determine
the scope and validity of third-party proprietaights. If we or, as applicable, our commerciali@atpartners, including Astellas pursuant to its
first right to enforce patents licensed to it under license agreements, choose to go to coutbpsomeone else from using our inventions,
that individual or company has the right to askdbaert to rule that the underlying patents are lidvand/or should not be enforced against that
third party. Moreover, if a competitor were to fdepatent application claiming technology also itted by us or our collaborators or licensees,
we would have to participate in an interferencecpealing before the U.S. Patent and Trademark Officetermine the priority of the
invention. We or our collaborators or licensees tayrawn into interferences with third partiesray have to provoke interferences ourse
to unblock third-party patent rights to allow usomrr collaborators or licensees to commercializelpcts based on our technologies. Litigation
could result in substantial costs and the diversiomanagement’s efforts regardless of the resiiltse litigation. An unfavorable result in
litigation could subject us to significant liabiéis to third parties, require disputed rights tdibensed or require us to cease using some
technologies.

Our products and processes may infringe, or beddarnnfringe, patents not owned or controlled By Ratents held by others may
require us to alter our products or processesjobt@nses, or stop activities. If relevant claioighird-party patents are upheld as valid and
enforceable, we or our collaborators or licenseesdcbe prevented from practicing the subject matgmed in the patents, or may be requ
to obtain licenses or redesign our products orgsses to avoid infringement. In addition, we or aallaborators or licensees could be required
to pay money damages. A number of genetic sequemgasteins encoded by genetic sequences thatenievgestigating are, or may become,
patented by others. As a result, we or our collatoos or licensees may have to obtain licensesstose or market these products. Our
business will suffer if we or our collaboratorslicensees are not able to obtain licenses at ahderms commercially reasonable to us or t
and we or they are not able to redesign our predorcprocesses to avoid infringement.

We have incurred costs in several legal proceedmgsving our intellectual property rights in Ey®, Japan and Canada. We may
continue to incur costs to defend and prosecutengaind patent applications in these and othé@neg
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Competition and technological change may make our product candidates and technologies less attractive or obsolete.

We compete with companies, including major pharmtical and biotechnology firms that are pursuinigeotforms of treatment or
prevention for diseases that we target. We alsoempgrience competition from companies that hageiaed or may acquire technologies
from universities and other research instituticksthese companies develop their technologies, riteay develop proprietary positions which
may prevent us from successfully commercializingdpicts.

Some of our competitors are established compantbsgneater financial and other resources than awehOther companies may succ
in developing products and obtaining regulatoryrapal from the FDA or comparable foreign agencastdr than we do, or in developing
products that are more effective than ours. Rebemnd development by others may seek to rendetechinologies or products obsolete or
noncompetitive or result in treatments or curesesiop to any therapeutics developed by us.

If we lose our key personnel or are unable to attract and retain additional personnel, we may not be able to achieve our business
objectives.

We are highly dependent on our principal scientifi@anufacturing, clinical, regulatory and managenpemsonnel, including Vijay B.
Samant, our President and Chief Executive Offi€ae loss of the services of these individuals mgjhificantly delay or prevent the
achievement of our objectives. We do not maint&ey“person” life insurance on any of our personé.depend on our continued ability to
attract, retain and motivate highly qualified mag@gnt and scientific personnel. We face competftomualified individuals from other
companies, academic institutions, government estdind other organizations in attracting and rgtgipersonnel. To pursue our product
development plans, we may need to hire additiormalagement personnel and additional scientific persioto perform research and
development, as well as additional personnel wifieetise in clinical trials, government regulatemd manufacturing. However, due to the
reasons noted above, we may not be successfulimg tor retaining qualified personnel and theref@eemay not be able to achieve our
business objectives.

We have limited experience in manufacturing our product candidatesin commercial quantities. We may not be able to comply with
applicable manufacturing regulations or produce sufficient product for contract or commercial purposes.

The commercial manufacturing of vaccines and df@pgical products is a time-consuming and comgecess, which must be
performed in compliance with the FDA'’s current Gdddnufacturing Practices, or cGMP, regulations. Méy not be able to comply with the
cGMP regulations, and our manufacturing process Ingegubject to delays, disruptions or quality colriproblems. In addition, we may neec
complete the installation and validation of additiblarge-scale fermentation and related puriftcagquipment to produce the quantities of
product expected to be required for commercial pseg. We have limited experience in manufacturirigis scale. Noncompliance with the
cGMP regulations, the inability to complete thetétiation or validation of additional large-scalgugoment, or other problems with our
manufacturing process may limit or delay the depelent or commercialization of our product candidagad cause us to breach our contract
manufacturing service arrangements or our obligatinder our agreements with collaborators, inalgidiur obligations under our supply and
services agreement with Astellas.

We currently depend on third parties to conduct our clinical trials and may initially depend on third parties to manufacture our product
candidates commercially.

We currently rely on third parties, including ctial research organizations, to perform criticalees for us in connection with our
clinical trials. Clinical research organizationg aesponsible for many aspects of the trials, gtioly finding and enrolling subjects for testing
and administering the trials. Although we rely bege third parties to conduct our clinical trialg, are responsible for ensuring that each o
clinical trials is conducted in accordance withgtstocol and applicable regulations, including dgatinical practices. Our reliance on third
parties does not relieve us of these responsdsildind requirements. These third parties may moplyowith all regulatory and contractual
requirements or may not otherwise perform theivises in a timely or acceptable manner, and we nemd to enter into new arrangements
with alternative third parties and our clinicabld may be extended, delayed or terminated. Irtiaddif such third parties fail to perform their
obligations in compliance with our clinical trialqtocols or applicable regulations, our clinicéls may not meet regulatory requirements or
may need to be repeated. These risks also appiye tdevelopment activities of our collaborators hoehsees, and we do not control our
collaborators’ and licensees’ research and devetmpnelinical trials or regulatory activities.
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We may also initially depend on collaborators, isees or other third parties to manufacture oudysrbcandidates in commercial
guantities. There are a limited number of thirdtiearthat could manufacture our product candidMésmay be unable to enter into any
arrangement for the commercial manufacture of eadyrct candidates, and any arrangement we secyreotaneet our requirements for
manufacturing quality or quantity. Our dependencé¢hird parties for the commercial manufacture wf product candidates may also reduce
our profit margins and our ability to develop aradivker products in a timely manner.

We have no marketing or sales experience, and if we are unable to develop our own sales and marketing capability, we may not be
successful in commercializing our products.

Our current strategy is to market our proprietangdpicts directly in the United States, but we cotlyedo not possess pharmaceutical
marketing or sales capabilities. To market andaallproprietary products, we will need to devedogales force and a marketing group with
relevant pharmaceutical industry experience, oravapropriate arrangements with strategic partoemsarket and sell these products.
Developing a marketing and sales force is experaietime-consuming and could delay any productdhulf we are unable to successfully
employ qualified marketing and sales personnelkeaetbp other sales and marketing capabilities, &g not be able to generate sufficient
product revenue to become profitable.

Healthcare reform and restrictions on reimbursement may limit our returns on potential products.

Our ability to earn sufficient returns on our protiuwill depend in part on how much, if any, reimgement for our products and related
treatments will be available from:

. Government health administration authoriti

. Government agencies procuring biodefense prodoctsifitary or public use, including some for whiale may become a sole-
source vendol

. Private health coverage insure
. Managed care organizations; ¢
. Other organizations

If we fail to obtain appropriate reimbursement,aeeld be prevented from successfully commerciadjdar potential products. There i
ongoing efforts by governmental and third-partygrayto contain or reduce the costs of healthcacritfh various reform measures. In the
United States, the Federal government passed cbensize healthcare reform legislation in 2010. Mahthe details regarding the
implementation of this legislation are yet to béedmined and we currently cannot predict whethdoavhat extent such implementation or
adoption of reforms may impair our business.

Additionally, third-party payers are increasinghyatienging the price of medical products and sewidf purchasers or users of our
products are not able to obtain adequate reimbwesefar the cost of using our products, they magdo or reduce their use. Significant
uncertainty exists as to the reimbursement stdtaswly approved healthcare products, and whettegaate third-party coverage will be
available.

We use hazardous materialsin our business. Any claimsrelating to improper handling, storage or disposal of these materials could be
time consuming and costly.

Our research and development processes involveottiteolled storage, use and disposal of hazardaisrials and biological materials.
Our hazardous materials include certain compregaséds, flammable liquids, acids and bases, and tmkie compounds. We are subject to
federal, state and local regulations governinguges manufacture, storage, handling and disposabtérials and waste products. Although we
believe that our safety procedures for handling@iadosing of these hazardous materials comply thighstandards prescribed by law and
regulation, the risk of accidental contaminationrmury from hazardous materials cannot be completiminated. In the event of an accident,
we could be held liable for any damages that re8ddt have insurance that covers our use of hazansaterials with the following coverage
limits: up to $50,000 per occurrence for losseatesl to contaminant clean-up or removal, $250,@90pcurrence for losses related to the
contamination of our covered premises and $250p@@®ccurrence for losses from radioactive contation. Any liability could exceed the
limits or fall outside the coverage of our insuran@&/e could incur significant costs to comply wéthrrent or future environmental laws and
regulations
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We may have significant product liability exposure.

We face an inherent business risk of exposuredduymt liability and other claims in the event that technologies or products are alle
to have caused harm. We also have potential ligthdi products manufactured by us on a contrasisi@r third parties. Although we currer
maintain product liability insurance in the amooh®$10 million in the aggregate plus additional emge specific to the foreign countries
where our clinical trials are being conducted, th&irance coverage may not be sufficient, and &g mot be able to obtain sufficient cover:
in the future at a reasonable cost. Our inabibtpbtain product liability insurance at an accefgaost or to otherwise protect against potential
product liability claims could prevent or inhibite commercialization of any products developed dgmour collaborators, or our ability to
manufacture products for third parties. If we aredsfor any injury caused by our technologies odpcts, or by third-party products that we
manufacture, our liability could exceed our insw@ioverage and total assets.

(*)Negative conditionsin the global credit markets may impair the liquidity of a portion of our investment portfolio.

Our investment securities consist of auction ratausties, corporate debt securities and govern@magency securities. As of March 31,
2012, our long-term investments included a (atvaduie) $2.5 million auction rate security securgdrunicipal bonds. At March 31, 2012, the
auction rate security we held maintained a StandaddPoor’s credit rating of BBB. Our auction rageurity is a debt instrument with a long-
term maturity and with an interest rate that i®tés short intervals through auctions. The coodgiin the global credit markets have preve
some investors from liquidating their holdings atton rate securities because the amount of g@E=usubmitted for sale has exceeded the
amount of purchase orders for such securitietelfet is insufficient demand for the securitieshatttme of an auction, the auction may not be
completed and the interest rates may be reseettepermined higher rates. When auctions for thesergies fail, the investments may not be
readily convertible to cash until a future auctadrthese investments is successful or they areeradd or mature.

Since February 2008, there has been insufficiemtashel at auction for our auction rate security llarch 31, 2012. As a result, this
security is currently not liquid, and we could leguired to hold it until it is redeemed by the &sar to maturity. As of March 31, 2012, we
recognized $0.6 million of losses related to thetian rate security by adjusting its carrying valliee market value of the security has parti
recovered from the lows that created the lossesfAMarch 31, 2012, we had recorded cumulative alimed gains of $0.3 million. Any future
decline in market value may result in additionalsies being recognized.

In the event we need to access the funds thahame illiquid state, we will not be able to do sithout the possible loss of principal, until
a future auction for this investment is successfit is redeemed by the issuer or it matures.dfare unable to sell this security in the market
or it is not redeemed, then we may be requirectd i to maturity.

(*)Our stock price could continue to be highly volatile and you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the price you pay for
them.

The market price of our common stock, like that@ny other life sciences companies, has been dikelig to continue to be highly
volatile. From January 1, 2009, to March 31, 2@ii#, stock price has ranged from $1.20 to $5.51.fohewing factors, among others, could
have a significant impact on the market price af @ammon stock:

. The results of our preclinical studies and clinicills or announcements regarding our plans fluréustudies or trials, or those of
our collaborators, licensees or competit:

. Evidence or lack of evidence of the safety or afficof our potential products or those of our dmators, licensees or competitt

. The success of our collaborators and licenseelsidimg Astellas, in the development or commercatian of our product
candidates

. The announcement by us or our collaborators, lees®r competitors of technological innovations@w products

. Developments concerning our patent or other préggrerights or those of our collaborators, licersseecompetitors, includin
litigation and challenges to our proprietary rigl

. Other developments with our collaborators or liesss including our entry into new collaborativdiocensing arrangement
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. Geopolitical developments, natural or r-made disease threats, or other events beyond atnot;
. U.S. and foreign governmental regulatory actic

. Changes or announcements in reimbursement pol

. Perioc-to-period fluctuations in our operating resu

. Market conditions for life science stocks in gethe

. Changes in the collective short interest in ouclst

. Changes in estimates of our performance by seesidnalysts; an

. Our cash balances, need for additional capital cmeédss to capite

We areat risk of securities class action litigation due to our expected stock price volatility.

In the past, stockholders have brought securiteessaction litigation against a company followadecline in the market price of its
securities. This risk is especially acute for usdase life science companies have experiencedegtsain average stock price volatility in
recent years and, as a result, have been subjext Bverage, a greater number of securities aletisn claims than companies in other
industries. To date, we have not been subjectasschction litigation. However, we may in the fetbe the target of this litigation. Securities
litigation could result in substantial costs andedi our management’s attention and resourcescaunid seriously harm our business.

Anti-takeover provisionsin our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of us, which may be beneficial
to our stockholders, more difficult and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws incluatgi-takeover provisions, such as a classifieddo#édirectors, a prohibition on
stockholder actions by written consent, the authaf our board of directors to issue preferreacktaithout stockholder approval, and
supermajority voting requirements for specifiedats. In addition, because we are incorporateddéla®are, we are governed by the
provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware GenerabGration Law, which generally prohibits stockrensl owning in excess of 15% of our
outstanding voting stock from merging or combinimith us for a period of three years. These prowsimay delay or prevent an acquisition of
us, even if the acquisition may be considered heiaéby some stockholders. In addition, they méscdurage or prevent any attempts by our
stockholders to replace or remove our current mamagt by making it more difficult for stockholdeesreplace members of our board of
directors, which is responsible for appointing thembers of our management.

Theissuance of preferred stock could adver sely affect our common stockholders.

We currently have on file a shelf registration aaént that allows us to raise up to an additioB8l4 million from the sale of common
stock, preferred stock, debt securities and/or avasrand our restated certificate of incorporagiothorizes us to issue up to 5,000,000 shat
preferred stock. The issuance of preferred stodkdcadversely affect the voting power of holder®of common stock, and reduce the
likelihood that our common stockholders will reaeidividend payments and payments upon liquidafitse. issuance of preferred stock could
also decrease the market price of our common stydkave terms and conditions that could discougatgkeover or other transaction that
might involve a premium price for our shares ot thar stockholders might believe to be in theirtbeterests.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description of Document

3.1(3)(1) Restated Certificate of Incorporatic

3.2(ii)(2) Amended and Restated Bylav

3.3(1)(2) Certificate of Amendment to Restated Certificaténarporation

4.1(1) Specimen Common Stock Certifica

10.1 Vical Incorporated Na-Employee Director Compensation Poli

31.1 Certification of Vijay B. Samant, Chief Executivéfider, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Jill M. Broadfoot, Chief Financi@fficer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of Vijay B. Samant, Chief Executivéfider, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification of Jill M. Broadfoot, Chief Financi@fficer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS* XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCH’ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutn

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docume

101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentr

(1) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the saumber filed with the Compa’s Registration Statement on Fori-3 (No. 3:-95812)
filed on August 15, 199t

(2) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of $hene number filed with the Company’s Quarterly &tepn Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended June 30, 201

Furnished herewith and n“filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exgkafict of 1934, as amende

*
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdRBport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Vical Incorporatec

Date: May 2, 201: By: _/s/JILL M. BROADFOOT
Jill M. Broadfoot
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officed:

Secretary (on behalf of the registrant and asdbistrant’s
Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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Exhibit 10.1

Vical Incorporated
Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy

Director Fees

The Chairman of our Board of Directors receivesanual fee of $64,000. Each of our other non-eng#ajirectors receives an annual
fee of $44,000.

Non-employee directors also receive fees for parti@padn committees of the Board of Directors. Thai@han of our Audit Committe
receives an annual fee of $25,000 and each otherbereof the Audit Committee receives an annuabfek7,000. The Chairman of our
Compensation Committee receives an annual fee 080 and each other member of the Compensatiom@tee receives an annual fee of
$7,000. The Chairman of our Nominating/Governanommittee receives an annual fee of $10,000 and ei®eln member of the
Nominating/Governance Committee receives an arfieeabf $7,000

Non-employee directors are also reimbursed for #rgienses for each Board or committee meetingddtd To the extent that any
taxable reimbursements are provided, they shathdde or provided in accordance with Section 409thefinternal Revenue Code and the
Treasury Regulations and other guidance therewamtéany state law of similar effect, including, bot limited to, the following provisions:

(a) the amount of any such expense reimbursemenided during the individual’s taxable year shait affect any expenses eligible for
reimbursement in any other taxable year, (b) tirebversement of the eligible expense shall be madater than the last day of the individwsal’
taxable year that immediately follows the taxaldaryin which the expense was incurred, (c) thet tiglany reimbursement shall not be subject
to liquidation or exchange for another benefit ayment.

All fees (except for expenses, which are reimbuesegrovided above) are paid on a quarterly basis.

Director Equity Awards

Under our Amended and Restated Stock Incentive, Beeh of our new non-employee directors, on the dihis or her election to the
Board of Directors, receives (a) a stock optiomgwith a Black-Scholes-Merton (“BSM”) value of $080 on the date of grant and (b) a
restricted stock unit (“‘RSU”) with a BSM value a2%000 on the date of grant. The shares subjebes®e options and RSUs generally vest
25% on the first anniversary of the date of grauith the remaining shares vesting quarterly overrtbxt three years.

Each non-employee director who has served on oardBof Directors for at least six months on theedsdteach regular Annual Meeting
of Stockholders also receives an annual grant)cdr{aoption with a BSM value of $63,750 and (b)$LRwith a BSM value of $21,250 as of
the grant date. These options and RSUs vest imfulhe date of the regular Annual Meeting of Sktad#lers for the year following the year in
which the option and RSU were granted.



more than an aggregate of 30% of the shares alailaoler our Stock Incentive Plan are availablegfant to non-employee directors. Our
Board of Directors may provide discretionary gramsler the Stock Incentive Plan to our non-emplalisctors.

The Chairman of our Board of Directors receivesanual grant of (a) an option with a BSM value 88%50 under the Stock Incentive
Plan (in lieu of the annual grant of an option vatBSM value of $63,750 which he would otherwisgeree as a non-employee director) and
(b) a RSU with a BSM value of $21,250 as of thengdate. The option and RSU granted to the Chairatsmvest in full on the date of the
regular Annual Meeting of Stockholders for the yiedlowing the year in which the option and RSU wgranted.

At the time an RSU is granted the non-employeectiremay make an irrevocable election to deferéhease of the common stock
underlying the RSU to a future date which is afftevesting date. The par value of $0.01 per shatke underlying shares of an RSU grant is
paid by the non-employee director on the date afgr



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Vijay B. Samant, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Vical Incorporated

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financiploming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the ttegid’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 2, 201.

By: /s/ VIJAY B. SAMANT

Vijay B. Saman
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

[, Jill M. Broadfoot, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Vical Incorporated

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financiploming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the ttegid’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: May 2, 201.

By: /s/ JILL M. BROADFOOT

Jill M. Broadfoot
Chief Financial Office!



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted), Vijay B. 8aimthe Chief Executive
Officer of Vical Incorporated (the “Company”), hesecertifies that, to the best of his knowledge:

1. The Compan’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended March 31, 2012, to whick ertification is attached .
Exhibit 32.1 (the “Periodic Report”), fully comp#ievith the requirements of Section 13(a) or Sectisfd) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;

2. The information contained in the Periodic Repomygresents, in all material respects, the firnahcondition of the Company
the end of the period covered by the Periodic Regradt results of operations of the Company forpiod covered by the Periodic
Report.

Dated: May 2, 201

/s/ VIJAY B. SAMANT

Vijay B. Saman
Chief Executive Office

THIS CERTIFICATION “ACCOMPANIES” THE FORM 10-Q TO WICH IT RELATES, IS NOT DEEMED FILED WITH THE SEC D
IS NOT TO BE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO ANY ANG OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933
AS AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19345 AMENDED (WHETHER MADE BEFORE OR AFTER THE
DATE OF THE FORM 10-Q), IRRESPECTIVE OF ANY GENERANCORPORATION LANGUAGE CONTAINED IN SUCH FILING. A
SIGNED ORIGINAL OF THIS CERTIFICATION HAS BEEN PRABED TO THE COMPANY AND WILL BE RETAINED BY THE
COMPANY AND FURNISHED TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANE COMMISSION OR ITS STAFF UPON REQUEST.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted), Jill M. Bifoat, the Chief Financial
Officer of Vical Incorporated (the “Company”), hesecertifies that, to the best of her knowledge:

1. The Compan’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the period ended March 31, 2012, to whick ertification is attached .
Exhibit 32.2 (the “Periodic Report”), fully comp#ievith the requirements of Section 13(a) or Sectibfd) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;

2. The information contained in the Periodic Refairly presents, in all material respects, thaficial condition of the Company at
the end of the period covered by the Periodic Regruat results of operations of the Company forpeod covered by the Periodic
Report.

Dated: May 2, 201,

/s/ JILL M. BROADFOOT
Jill M. Broadfoot
Chief Financial Office!

THIS CERTIFICATION “ACCOMPANIES” THE FORM 10-Q TO WICH IT RELATES, IS NOT DEEMED FILED WITH THE SEC D
IS NOT TO BE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE INTO ANY ANG OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933
AS AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19345 AMENDED (WHETHER MADE BEFORE OR AFTER THE
DATE OF THE FORM 10-Q), IRRESPECTIVE OF ANY GENERANCORPORATION LANGUAGE CONTAINED IN SUCH FILING. A
SIGNED ORIGINAL OF THIS CERTIFICATION HAS BEEN PRABED TO THE COMPANY AND WILL BE RETAINED BY THE
COMPANY AND FURNISHED TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANE COMMISSION OR ITS STAFF UPON REQUES



